FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 2000/ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION REGULATIONS 2004 
Your request for information has now been considered and the Council’s response to your questions is shown below.

You asked:
Contract Details
1. Which supplier currently provides your Highways Management System (HMS) or Equivalent UKPMS Accredited system?

Causeway provide our Highways Management System (HMS) – Mayrise and our UKPMS Accredited system – MarchPMS. We are in the process of implementing a new asset management solution which uses Alloy, Horizons and MarchPMS, which are provided by Causeway. The solution is anticipated to brought online from 31st March 2025 onwards.


2. What is the scope of your current HMS contract?
(e.g., asset management, road maintenance scheduling, traffic management, incident reporting, etc.)

Provision of asset management system to enable management of Highways assets, mobile working, digital management of inspections, defects and jobs and improved data provision for our various Highways teams and to fulfil our relevant legal duties.  Also to aid and inform our annual highways maintenance program and undertake our mandatory reporting to the DfT (Department for Transport). 


3. What is the value of the current HMS contract (per annum and total contract value)?

This letter constitutes a refusal notice under Section 17.1 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 because an exemption under Section 21 of the Act is being applied, namely the information is accessible by other means, the Council Website, and is already in the public domain. 

All Council expenditure can be found via the following link:

Expenditure exceeding £500 - 2023 — Leicester Open Data
Provision of Alloy, Horizons and MarchPMS has a total contract value - £990,750.00. You can view a breakdown on Contracts - 2023 — Leicester Open Data as entry 152 in the Table tab.


4. What is the contract start date, end date, and renewal date?

· Start Date: 31/03/2025

· Renewal Date: 31/03/2030 – when extension options come into effect

· End Date: 31/03/2035

Implementation has been ongoing since 2024. The project started around April to transfer data and train people to use the new system.  The go live date is 31/3/2025, and start of the 5+5 years.

5. What is the duration of the current contract, including any extension options?

10 years duration - 5 years with the option to extend by 1 year for the 5 subsequent years (5+1+1+1+1+1)


6. What is the procurement framework used for the current contract?
(e.g., G-Cloud, Crown Commercial Service, etc.)

Procured through open tender with bespoke contract (0761PCPTED). 
Information about our contracts are published online: Explore — Leicester Open Data. You can view this projects information here: Contracts - 2023 — Leicester Open Data as entry 152 in the Table tab. 


7. Are there any performance penalties or incentives within the contract? If yes, please provide details.

There are 4 project milestone payments during the implementation stage of the contract. There are no incentives or penalties integrated into the contract and payments are issued on the anniversary of the contract or are available to call off throughout the project duration. 
________________________________________
System Features and Usage
8. What modules or features are included in your current HMS?
(e.g., GIS integration, work order management, mobile workforce support, citizen reporting, etc.)

· Asset Management

· GIS Visualisation

· Work Order Management

· Data Analysis, Auditing and Reporting

· Mobile working application for operational staff – Inspections, Defects and Jobs

· Digital Automation 

9. What other systems does your HMS integrate with?
(e.g., financial systems, geographic information systems, customer relationship management tools, etc.)

· Telensa Planet – API

· Street Manager – API

· Bspoke Job Costing – API


10. What level of customisation has been implemented in the current HMS?

We had one customisation developed, the addition of a risk matrix for highway inspection.


11. How many users currently access the system, and what is their role (e.g., staff, contractors)?

Alloy - 57 named user accounts with a mixture of web based and mobile application license provision. Users of the system are staff from the following teams:

· 1 - Senior Management

· 1 - Highways and Bridge Maintenance 

· 9 - Highway Management 

· 18 Street Lighting

· 3 - Drainage 

· 25 - City Highways (in house contractor) – DLO (Direct Labour Organisation)

Total - 57

Access by external 3rd party contractors will be explored and implemented in the first 12 months after go live.

Horizons - 4 Named users using a single concurrent license all within the Highways and Bridge Maintenance team.

MarchPMS – 0 – managed remotely by Causeway as UKPMS as a service.
________________________________________
Tendering and Procurement
12. When is the next planned tender for the Highways Management System?

2030 – 2035 dependant on extension. 


13. What are the key evaluation criteria for selecting a supplier for the HMS?

· Price

· Satisfaction of specification and technical criteria in Tender

· Insurance requirements

14. What were the top three reasons for selecting your current HMS supplier?

· Price

· Most suitable for our needs

· Most self configurable option


15. What challenges or pain points have been identified in the current HMS procurement process?

· Timescales associated with Tender and Implementation


_______________________________________
Budget and Expenditure
16. What is the annual budget allocated for Highways Management Systems, including licensing, support, and maintenance costs?


17. Are there any additional costs associated with the current HMS contract (e.g., implementation, training, third-party integrations)?

In response to questions 16 and 17.  Again section 21 of the Act is applicable, this information is already in the public domain and can be found via the following links:

All Council expenditure can be found via the following link:

Expenditure exceeding £500 - 2023 — Leicester Open Data
Contracts - 2023 — Leicester Open Data as entry 152 in the Table tab.

________________________________________
Performance and Feedback
18. How is the performance of the current HMS measured?
(e.g., KPIs, SLAs, user satisfaction, etc.)

· Service specific Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s)

· Service Level Agreements (SLA’s) with Supplier and 3rd party suppliers for associated integrations 


19. Have there been any significant system failures or downtimes in the last 3 years? If yes, please provide details.

Leicester City Council experienced a cyber incident in March 2024, which led to approximately 3 weeks of system downtime. Latest information on this can be found at: Cyber incident.

No significant downtime as a result of supplier failure or issue in the last 3 years. 


20. What has been the overall satisfaction level of your staff and stakeholders with the current HMS?

Satisfied.
________________________________________
Data and Reporting
21. What types of reports are generated by the HMS (e.g., maintenance logs, incident reports)?

· Data, Asset, inspection, defect and Job summary 

· Energy extract

· KPI and performance 

· Insurance claim 

· Maintenance and Audit log 

· Financial, budgetary and expenditure

· Mandatory DfT indicator, network and performance

· Whole of Government Accounting


22. Is the HMS compliant with relevant data protection regulations (e.g., UK GDPR)?

Yes. 


23. Does the HMS support open data initiatives for public access to highways-related information?

It can be configured to do so but at present Leicester City Council publishes all required open data sets separately on: Explore — Leicester Open Data.
________________________________________
Sustainability and Future Plans
24. How does the HMS support sustainability goals (e.g., reducing carbon emissions, green infrastructure planning)?

Our supplier is committed to net zero and has published a: Causeway Carbon Reduction Plan Summary. 

We will see benefits in carbon reduction, by implementing new technologies, adopting digital working and moving away from more traditional paper based systems of work, optimising job allocation to reduce vehicle travel times and enabling the increased possibility of remote working.


25. Are there any plans to adopt new technologies (e.g., AI, IoT) within the HMS?

Yes. 

Integration of AI derived road condition datasets to inform decision making in the near future. We will also begin to explore additional integrations and adoption of new technology to improve efficiency for our services throughout the duration of the contract. 


26. What challenges are anticipated in transitioning to a new HMS, if applicable?

· Resourcing (monetary, staff, equipment) to support transition

· Data Cleansing and conversion from previous system to new system

_____________________________________
Additional Context
27. Are there any shared service agreements in place with other councils for HMS use?

No.

28. Does the council use in-house resources to manage the HMS, or is it fully outsourced?

Fully operated and managed in house at this time. We will be exploring how our 3rd party contractors can be onboarded in the future. 


29. Is your council open to pilot programs for innovative highways management technologies?

Yes.

